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1                       P R O C E E D I N G S

2                          [JUNE 20, 2017]

3                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  At this time, I'd

4    like to call to order the Tuesday, June 20th meeting of the

5    Franklin County Planning and Zoning Commission.

6                 Scottie, will you please take roll.

7                           MS. EAGAN:  Bill Evans?

8                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Here.

9                           MS. EAGAN:  Jay Schultehenrich?

10                           COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  Here.

11                           MS. EAGAN:  Todd Boland?

12                           COMMISSIONER BOLAND:  [Not present.]

13                           MS. EAGAN: Tim Reinhold?

14                           COMMISSIONER REINHOLD:  Here.

15                           MS. EAGAN:  Ray Cunio?

16                           COMMISSIONER CUNIO:  [Not present.]

17                           MS. EAGAN: Tom Tobben?

18                           COMMISSIONER TOBBEN:  Here.

19                           MS. EAGAN: Bill McLaren?

20                           COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  Here.

21                           MS. EAGAN: Stan Voss?

22                           COMMISSIONER VOSS:  Here.

23                           MS. EAGAN: Dan Haire?

24                           COMMISSIONER HAIRE:  Here.

25                           MS. EAGAN: Russell McCreary?
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1                           COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  Here.

2                           MS. EAGAN: And, Ron Williams?

3                           COMMISSIONER WILLIAMS:  Here.

4                           MS. EAGAN:  Okay, we have a quorum.

5                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Thank you.

6                 At this time, I'll give the Planning and Zoning

7    Commissioners a chance to declare any conflict,

8    communication, or relationship they may have had that might

9    influence their ability to consider today's issues

10    impartially.  [None]  There's no declaration.

11                 Scottie, will you please gives us the

12    presentation of the proceedings and exhibits.

13                           MS. EAGAN:  Tonight's Planning

14    Commission meeting is governed by the Franklin County

15    Unified Land Use Regulations.

16                 Some matters on the agenda may be for action by

17    the Planning and Zoning Commission.  These matters do not

18    involve public hearing.  Other matters on the agenda require

19    public hearings under Missouri law.  If a matter involves a

20    public hearing, all individuals who desire to testify will

21    be given an opportunity to do so.

22                 At this time, I would like to place into the

23    record these Regulations as Exhibit A, the official Zoning

24    Map as Exhibit B, the official Master Plan as Exhibit C, and

25    the case file for each case as Exhibit D for all the cases
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1    to be heard during the meeting.

2                           [Thereupon, evidence was marked

3                      for identification and presented for

4                      the record as Planning and Zoning

5                      Exhibits A, B, C, and D.]

6                 All Old Business items on the agenda will be

7    dealt with first.

8                 Once the Old Business issues have been taken

9    care of, each item of New Business will be opened.

10                 As each case is opened, a staff report will

11    first be read to the Commission, followed by any questions

12    for the staff.

13                 Then if anyone in the audience would like to

14    speak or comment on a file that is part of the public

15    hearing, they must first print their name on the sign-in

16    sheet provided, and then be sworn in by the Chairman.

17                 When it is your turn to speak, you will come to

18    the front of the room to address the Commission and only the

19    Commission, not anyone in the audience, with your comments.

20                 It is possible for the Planning Commission to

21    decide to move a New Business issue to Old Business and vote

22    on it the same night.

23                 At the conclusion of all questions, comments,

24    and discussion concerning each case, the Planning Commission

25    will proceed.  Any final decision by the Planning and Zoning
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1    Commission concerning conditional use permits may be

2    appealed to the Board of Zoning Adjustment any time within

3    90 days.

4                 Applications for such an appeal may be acquired

5    from the Department offices during normal business hours.

6                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Thank you.

7                 All the Commissioners should have received a

8    copy of the minutes from the May 16th meeting.  If there are

9    no additions or corrections, the Chair would entertain a

10    motion to approve.

11                           COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  I'll make a

12    motion to approve the minutes.

13                           COMMISSIONER TOBBEN:  I'll second

14    that.

15                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  We have a motion and

16    a second to approve the May 16th meeting minutes.  All in

17    favor signify by saying aye.

18                           COMMISSIONER REINHOLD:  Aye.

19                           COMMISSIONER VOSS:  Aye.

20                           COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  Aye.

21                           COMMISSIONER WILLIAMS:  Aye.

22                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Aye.

23                           COMMISSIONER TOBBEN:  Aye.

24                           COMMISSIONER HAIRE:  Aye.

25                           COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  Aye.
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1                           COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  Aye.

2                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Opposed?  [None]

3                 Minutes approved.

4                 Commission and Visitors Comments.  Is there

5    anyone present wishing to address the Commission?  [None]

6                 If not, Cameron?

7                           MR. CAMERON LUEKEN:  Yeah, Bill, I'll

8    be addressing the amendment to the regulations that pertains

9    to the Code, but I'm going to do it outside of the -- what's

10    on the agenda tonight.

11                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Okay.  Do we want to

12    do that now then, because this would be an appropriate time?

13                           MS. EAGAN:  Now would be an

14    appropriate time.

15                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Okay, go ahead,

16    Cameron.

17                           MR. LUEKEN:  Okay.

18                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  This is not

19    testimony, so you do not have to be sworn in.

20                           MR. LUEKEN:  Got you.

21                 So what I want to speak tonight is specifically

22    in the Codes.  There is a 4:1 depth ratio regarding the lot.

23    So if you create a lot in the County, and, Scottie -- I was

24    kind of speaking informally to Scottie, and we are going to

25    have this discussion because I want to make sure that
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1    Scottie and I are on the same page about that.

2                 Basically, when the Codes were -- the last

3    major change was 2009 in the Codes.  At that time, there was

4    a 1:4 or 4:1 width-to-depth ratio of the lot.   And what

5    that was put in there for is basically for ridge top

6    developments or developments that fronted roads.  We wanted

7    to avoid the example of say a lot was 100 foot wide and a

8    thousand foot deep.  So we didn't get a narrow, skinny lot.

9                 So what at the time was discussed was the 401.

10    So in that example, the lot would be 250 wide by a thousand

11    foot deep or 200 foot wide by 800 foot deep.  That was the

12    4:1 max ratio, and we've been able to work with that.

13    There's been a few circumstances where it's been perhaps the

14    terrain or whatever it is, but we generally can work around

15    that.  It has not caused a great hardship overall.    So

16    that's generally been working.

17                 So what I'm speaking to tonight is basically

18    the zero lot line developments.  So if you can imagine this,

19    if you've got a -- say a 22,000-foot lot and you want to put

20    a four-plex on it and you want to divide that into.  So it's

21    lot 1.  You want to divide the four-plex into four lots.

22    Lot 1-A, B, C, D.  So you're taking a 100-foot wide lot by

23    say 200 foot deep and dividing it.

24                 So those interior units are not going to meet

25    the 4:1 depth ratio.  That was something I didn't think
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1    applied to zero lot line developments, but when the Code --

2    as the Code was written, it didn't specifically exclude

3    those zero lot line developments.  It basically defined a

4    lot.  A lot is still a zero lot line, and it didn't

5    specifically say it excluded it.

6                 So I guess the back sort of that is when a

7    person wanted to divide an attached unit in the past, prior

8    to the 2007 prices, these are they used the Condominium Act

9    to do that.  The Condominium Act worked well for many years,

10    but in 2007 the crash hit, and now people have a hard time

11    getting financing on condos.  Any time the word of condo is

12    mentioned, it's an issue.  And we've seen that.  So what

13    we've done is, is that I can -- we have a have zero lot line

14    development now.  Washington zero lot line development.  So

15    on a lot of the duplexes we turned those in from condos into

16    zero lot lines.  That's allowed the sale of those lots.  So

17    people own the real estate completely underneath the unit

18    rather than Condominium Act.  Basically there's common

19    elements and limited common elements, the ultimate studs in,

20    you might say.  Every other component was a, I guess, a

21    shared common element you might say.

22                 So I guess if you have questions about that,

23    how me got there, please ask and I won't dwell on it

24    anymore.  But basically moving forward, you know, for like a

25    duplex in the county, it's not really an issue.  We can
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1    generally meet the 4:1 ratio in a duplex.  However,

2    triplexes and four-lexes are going to be challenging.  And

3    basically to answer why has this come up in, I guess --

4    eight years, I guess.  To answer that question, there hasn't

5    been a multi-family triplex or four-plex approved since

6    then.  I mean, I guess proposed since then.  And until last

7    month, we didn't know that was an issue.  And I guess no one

8    did.  So we just kind of discovered that in the Code.

9                 So what I'm proposing is, I guess, I'm

10    proposing to enter- -- for you guys to entertain and discuss

11    is that -- and I'm just going to throw this out there

12    because it's open for discussion -- basically on attached

13    units, the zero lot line 4:1 would not necessarily apply.

14    Maybe there's a minimum frontage requirement for a lot, but

15    the zero lot line the 4:1 ratio -- the zero lot line

16    component wouldn't apply on an attached unit, so the duplex

17    and up as long as you've got the minimum frontage

18    requirement for a lot.  And I guess I'm just trying to

19    figure out where to start the conversation at.

20                           MS. EAGAN:  Another reason why this

21    happened is this development did come in, if you look at all

22    the public notices, as a zero lot line development.  So they

23    had to amend it after we realized the Code doesn't fit.

24                 So Cameron and his client want to see what you

25    guys' feelings are on amending the Code potentially.  And
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1    then they would apply for an amendment to be before you guys

2    next month.  So then they could potentially come back as a

3    zero lot line development.

4                 In reference to what you said, I don't think

5    minimum frontage would work because our minimum frontage is

6    50 feet.

7                           MR. LUEKEN:  Okay.

8                           MS. EAGAN:  So then your interior

9    units still --

10                           MR. LUEKEN:  Right.  Right.

11                           MS. EAGAN:  -- wouldn't meet that.

12                 What we talked about in the office is

13    potentially doubling the ratio on zero lot lines.  So

14    instead of 4:1, 8:1 or, you know, something like that.

15                 If you guys are open to an amendment, they're

16    going to file one with what they would like to see.  And

17    then you guys would hear it next month.

18                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Okay.  We can

19    discuss that under the Planning and Zoning Commission Forum.

20                           MR. LUEKEN:  Okay.

21                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  All right.

22                 Thank you, Cameron.

23                 Anyone else wishing to address the Commission?

24    [None]

25                 If not, we'll move on to Old Business, which we
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1    have none.

2                 New business, which we have none.

3                 Preliminary Plats.  File 170075 again

4    postponed.  Which brings us to File 170098, Ryan's Real

5    Estate, in care of Cameron Lueken.

6                 Scottie, will you please -- or I'm sorry.  Only

7    written comments from the public may be submitted.  No oral

8    testimony will be accepted.

9                 Scottie, can you give us the details.

10                           MS. EAGAN:  This is File 170098.

11                 The applicant is Ryan's Real Estate in care of

12    Cameron Lueken.

13                 The applicant requests to create a 12-lot

14    un-subdivided development in the Community Development

15    Zoning District.

16                 The property is located on Country Club Road,

17    approximately four-tenths mile southeast of Highway A, in

18    St. John's Township.

19                 The Facts:  The total property is approximately

20    68.4 acres in size.  The applicant is only developing

21    approximately 11 acres at this time.

22                 The zoning of this property is Community

23    Development.  The minimum lot size in Community Development

24    is 22,000 square feet with a maximum density of one dwelling

25    unit per 5,000 square feet.
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1                 This subdivision is proposing to be developed

2    in three phases.

3                 Water service and sewer service will be

4    provided by Water District No. 1, but the treatment of the

5    water will be done by the City of Washington.

6                 The applicant notes a 15-foot utility easement

7    along the private road, a 10-foot utility easement on the

8    rear, and a 5-foot utility easement along the side property.

9    The applicant is missing the 20-foot utility easement that

10    is required along the public road, Country Club Road.

11                 With a development of this size, the applicant

12    is required to offer 10 percent open space dedication.  The

13    applicant has shown common ground at 1.56 acres.

14                 According to the preliminary plat, the common

15    ground is also the location of the detention basin for the

16    development.  This is not to be developed until Phase 3.

17                 A land disturbance permit from DNR is required

18    to disturb more than one acre of land as well as erosion

19    controls during development.

20                 The plat shows all roads and right-of-ways and

21    pavement meeting the standards set forth in the Franklin

22    County Unified Land Use Regulations.

23                 All utilities shall be located underground.

24                 Staff Comments:  Staff is unsure about fire

25    protection.  I have an e-mail in to the Washington Community
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1    Fire Protection District to see if they have their own rules

2    to enforce.

3                 If the Washington Community Fire Protection

4    District does not have their own enforceable rule, the

5    applicant shall provide fire protection in accordance with

6    Article 8, Section 197.  They shall provide fire hydrants

7    every 400 feet being served by 8-inch water lines unless the

8    fire district approves 6-inch water lines. Each hydrant

9    shall maintain a minimum flow of 1,000 gallons per minute at

10    20 psi.

11                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Thank you.

12                 Is the applicant present?

13                           MR. LUEKEN:  No.

14                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Now, Cameron, if

15    you'll state your name and address and sign in, please.

16                           MR. LUEKEN:  My name is Cameron

17    Lueken with Wunderlich Surveying and Engineering.  Address

18    512 East Main Street, Union.

19                 Nichole, could you swith the audio to the -- or

20    video.

21                           (Thereupon, the witness was sworn.)

22                 Okay.  Scottie mentioned Ryan's Real Estate has

23    a contract to purchase about 57 to 58 acres out of the 60.4

24    acres that the owner current owns on Country Club Road.  The

25    purpose is to subdivide part of the 57 acres.  It's going to
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1    be this first phase or this preliminary plat is comprised

2    of 11.2 acres.  It's going to create 12 four-plex lots.

3                 What this looks like is there's the 57 acres.

4    Let me get the pointer here.

5                 If you're wondering where the rest of of the

6    property is, it's -- this is the Hindleberg and Derkel [ph.]

7    tract.  They whole tract, whoever is familiar with that.

8    This is Highway F here.  This is Country Club Road.  There's

9    a triangular piece here that was owned -- well, it kind of

10    comes down like this -- owned by the Hindleberg-Derkel [ph.]

11    tract family.  This here was Bob Burkle's [ph.] place.  He's

12    since sold this.  So the -- the tract is entirely -- it

13    wraps around like this.  So Ryan's Real Estate has a

14    contract to purchase this amount.  The preliminary plat is

15    comprised of this 11.2 acres.

16                 So we're going to focus on that area.

17    Basically it's 12 lots.  As you can see, Phase 1 is going to

18    is going to be lots 1 and 8.  So these two lots here.  Phase

19    2 will be lots 10, 11, and 12.  So it'll be this one, this

20    one, and this one.  And Phase 3 will be the remaining

21    balance of that preliminary plat.

22                 There is what the preliminary plat looks like.

23    I think you probably all got a copy of that in your packet.

24    As Scottie mentioned, it's zoned CD, Community Development.

25    There is where the tract exists.  This is a typical
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1    elevation view of what Ryan's proposing to build.  So

2    basically in this situation -- and Ryan is here tonight.  So

3    if you'd like to talk to him in minute.  When I sit down,

4    I'll have him come up and -- but basically you got a raise

5    here with the garage, and you got a two-story closure here

6    in the middle of the garage.  So like all these structures

7    are proposed to have garages.  And that's a typical

8    evaluation view of the structure.

9                 Just in conclusion, 11.2 development, it's 12

10    four-plex lots.  Constructions to occur in phases as

11    mentioned.  That's really about it.

12                 Does anyone have any questions for myself?

13                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  I notice we did get

14    a letter.   Ron, I didn't have a chance to look at that in

15    detail, but you have a question?

16                           COMMISSIONER WILLIAMS:  Thank you.

17                 I think you're referring to the e-mail I sent

18    to Ms. Eagan that indicates that you're going to need an

19    entrance or access permit since we have Country Club Road.

20                           MR. LUEKEN:  Sure.

21                           COMMISSIONER WILLIAMS:  That

22    shouldn't be a problem, but it does have to be done before

23    the final plat is approved.

24                           MR. LUEKEN:  Understood.

25                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Just out of
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1    curiosity, what's the square footage of that?

2                           MR. LUEKEN:  I'm going to have -- if

3    you guys don't have any questions regarding the preliminary

4    plat, if you do, just let me back it up.  But I'm going to

5    have Ryan come up and talk to you about the structures

6    themselves.  Is that okay, Bill?

7                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Yeah.  One other

8    question on the preliminary plat.  Looking at the two lots,

9    will that road go all the way through past back to that cul

10    de sac in Phase 1?

11                           MR. LUEKEN:  Which one, Bill?

12                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  [Indicating.]

13                           MR. LUEKEN:  Will that cul de sac do

14    what, Bill?

15                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Will that road be

16    completed during Phase 1?

17                           MR. LUEKEN:  No.  In Phase 1 what it

18    will be is basically Phase 1 will come in like this to here,

19    and it'll just -- be just this road and this road.  It'll be

20    just a 'T' right here, is what it will be during Phase 1.

21                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Okay.  I was just

22    wondering because I think it ends where it's supposed to end

23    in a cul de sac or...

24                           MR. LUEKEN:  Right.  And we can -- I

25    guess normally -- and I don't want to get into details right
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1    now, but we can.  I think normally if it's more than 150

2    feet, I think a temporary cul de sac turnaround is needed,

3                 And we don't see the 150 feet there is the

4    reason why we didn't show a temporary cul de sac.

5                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Okay.

6                           MR. LUEKEN:  Yeah.  So as far as the

7    fire trucks being pulled in, this is basically going to be a

8    'T', is what it's going to be.  So...

9                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Okay.

10                 Any other questions?

11                           COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  Where are you

12    starting counting 150 feet from?

13                           MR. LUEKEN:  The nearest

14    intersection.

15                           COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  Go ahead.

16                           COMMISSIONER WILLIAMS:  Okay.  Future

17    -- since there's future development there, is that main road

18    going to loop around at some point in time, and --

19                           MR. LUEKEN:  Yeah.

20                           COMMISSIONER WILLIAMS:  -- have

21    secondary access?

22                           MR. LUEKEN:  Correct.  So, Ron,

23    basically this is going to be 48 units.  This is all built

24    out.  To satisfy that emergency access, there will be a road

25    built up to satisfy that, but the answer to the bigger
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1    picture question, I would say this is the success -- the

2    development's success as we hope it to be you can see this

3    road still here.  This road will actually come around back

4    on itself.

5                           COMMISSIONER WILLIAMS:  Thank you.

6                           MS. EAGAN: Bill, I have a question.

7                 With the fire protection, do you know if

8    Washington has their own enforceable rules like Boles and

9    Union?

10                           MR. LUEKEN:  Yeah.  So I talked with

11    Chief Halmich -- let's see today is Tuesday.  I may get my

12    days mixed up.  It was either Monday or Friday, Scottie, and

13    I asked, Bill, that very same question, A is your district

14    set up to -- do we need to get a building permit from you

15    and the County.  And his response at that was, is that

16    they're in the process of adopting ordinances, but they have

17    not got those adopted yet.

18                           MS. EAGAN:  Okay.

19                           MR. LUEKEN:  So basically they're

20    just acting as status quo as they have in the past.

21                           MS. EAGAN:  Okay.

22                           MR. LUEKEN:  So they -- they are not

23    requiring it from them right now.  At some point in the

24    future.  It may be six months --

25                           MS. EAGAN:  Right.
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1                           MR. LUEKEN:  -- four months.  I don't

2    know, at some point.

3                           MS. EAGAN:  Okay.  So then with that,

4    I also had trouble finding your fire hydrants.  I think I

5    found three of them in this development, but two of -- one

6    of them is more than the 400 feet that we allow, and they're

7    served by the water lines that are less than eight inches.

8    So we would need approval from the fire district.

9                           MR. LUEKEN:  Okay.  So to answer that

10    question, there is a six-inch to eight-inch reducer that

11    exists along Country Club Road.  I guess we can get that on

12    the plans, but I guess basically we'll make sure that we get

13    -- just make it contingent or make it part of the record

14    that we'll connect an eight to eight.  You know, and we

15    have -- we have requested a flow test from the fire to make

16    sure --

17                           MS. EAGAN:  Okay.

18                           MR. LUEKEN:  Or I'm sorry, the water

19    stream, and we do meet the thousand gallons a minute.

20                           MS. EAGAN:  Do you -- okay.  So when

21    I look at your plat, I see one fire hydrant at the top of

22    the cul de sac on the west side, and then I see another

23    one -- if you go down that water line towards the curb,

24    correct?

25                           MR. LUEKEN:  Right.
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1                           MS. EAGAN:  And then the only other

2    one I see is on the opposite side of the street over by the

3    other cul de sac.  Is that correct, between lot 12 and 11?

4                           MR. LUEKEN:  Correct.  And what there

5    might exist, and I don't know, I have to verify this --

6    there may be exist a hydrant on the existing line on Country

7    Club Road that we didn't show.

8                           MS. EAGAN:  Okay.

9                           MR. LUEKEN:  That may --

10                           MS. EAGAN:  If there is, then that

11    would meet the 400, but if it's not, --

12                           MR. LUEKEN:  Right.

13                           MS. EAGAN:  -- we're going to have an

14    issue.

15                           MR. LUEKEN:  Correct.  That's -- so

16    we' just -- just make it say that we have to meet the --

17                           MS. EAGAN:  Right, fire code.

18                           MR. LUEKEN:  Yeah.

19                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Cameron, one other

20    question.  You were talking before the difference between

21    the condos on a zero lot line.  So zero lot line, I think

22    you mentioned, they would own the property --

23                           MR. LUEKEN:  Correct.

24                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  -- underneath the

25    building.
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1                           MR. LUEKEN:  Correct.

2                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Own sewer, water,

3    everything would be separate, it's just the common wall?

4                           MR. LUEKEN:  Collect.  Yeah, it

5    basically, there is no -- in the condo minium, there is

6    common elements and limited common elements.  And the common

7    elements, if you can image, are the structural part of the

8    building.  Where with the zero lot line you split those fire

9    walls with just a line, and then there is a reciprocal

10    maintenance agreement, like a five-foot maintenance

11    agreement, on each side of that wall.  And that needs to be

12    recorded with the indentures of the subdivision.  And that's

13    typically what we've been in Union and Washington.

14                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Okay.

15                           MR. LUEKEN:  Yeah.

16                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Yeah, I just wanted

17    to differentiate where the condos is -- if they all common

18    ground where the zero -- zero lot line basically looked at,

19    is individual residences, just happen to share a common

20    wall, but they own the property underneath, all the

21    utilities are totally separate?

22                           MR. LUEKEN:  Correct.

23                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Okay.

24                 Any other questions or comments from the

25    Commissioners?  [None]
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1                 All right.  Thank you, Cameron.

2                           MR. LUEKEN:  Thank you.

3                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Would anyone like

4    the opportunity to come up, any questions of him at all?

5                           COMMISSIONER TOBBEN:  Yeah.  I'd like

6    to know square footage, are they all going to be owner

7    occupied?

8                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Okay.

9                 Will you please state your name and address and

10    sign in, please.

11                           MR. RYAN KRAMME:  Ryan Kramme, 657

12    Country Village Drive.

13                           (Thereupon, the witness was sworn.)

14                 Yeah, the front elevation that we're presenting

15    here, those are approximately 1,300 square foot.  I

16    apologize.

17                 The front elevation that we're presenting here

18    are approximately -- all four of those units are

19    approximately 1,300 square foot.

20                           COMMISSIONER REINHOLD:  Are the

21    two-story ones larger square footage?

22                           MR. KRAMME:  No, they're actually

23    very simular to the one-stories.  All four units are roughly

24    1,300.  The one-stories just have a wider footprint than the

25    two-stories.
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1                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Just out curiosity,

2    do they not know exactly yet what -- what are you pricing

3    these at?

4                           MR. KRAMME:  I wouldn't -- ideally

5    $1,200 a month rent.  As we're presenting now, I believe the

6    question came up whether they're going to be owner occupied

7    or -- or rentals.  As is presented now, they'll be rentals.

8                 We won't be able to consider the owner occupied

9    till we get the zero lot lines established.  Going forward,

10    it's a new development.  I'm not sure which -- which idea

11    will take hold.  So I'd like to keep my options open,

12    whether they're -- would be owner occupied or rentals.

13                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  So initially they'd

14    be rentals?

15                           MR. KRAMME:  Yeah, right now.  I

16    would like to -- Cameron's proposal earlier about the 4:1

17    ratio, if we can get that amended in the county so we could

18    have the flexibility to -- to record zero lot lines on these

19    buildings that would be preferential to me so I could have

20    that option to sell individual units as opposed to them only

21    being available for rental.

22                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Okay.  I mean, that

23    would be your preference, would be to sell them?  I just ask

24    because if we looking at making any changes, that would be

25    -- any changes would probably be done in a couple of months,
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1    which I think would long before you start any construction.

2                                MR. KRAMME:  Correct.  Yeah, I

3    don't envision them all immediately being owner occupied.  I

4    would like to keep some for my own investment purposes.  So

5    I don't want to paint the picture that it's going to be 100

6    percent owner occupied.  But I would like the opportunity to

7    -- especially if the rental market isn't there that I think

8    is there, to be able to sell individual units.

9                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Any other questions,

10    comments?  Tom?

11                           COMMISSIONER TOBBEN:  Will this be

12    built on a slab or will it have basements?

13                           MR. KRAMME:  It's going to be a

14    variety, depending on the contour.  Some of them are --

15    there is quite a bit of slope.  So I think it'd make sense

16    to have walk-out basements on those.  And there is quite a

17    bit of slope on this 11 acres.  There's a few lots that are

18    level that I'd like to do slab on, but it will be a

19    combination, I would image.

20                           COMMISSIONER TOBBEN:  Is this a

21    concept you'd take further out into the development as well?

22                           MR. EVEN:  Possibly.  At this pint,

23    though, I think 12 lots is plenty for this concept and see

24    how -- see how it takes off.  And depending on the success

25    of that would depend what we extend into further phases of
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1    the development.

2                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Any other questions?

3    [None]

4                 Thank you.

5                           MR. KRAMME:  All right.  Thanks.

6                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  So, Scottie, it

7    meets all the criteria for a preliminary plat, it has all

8    been received by you with exception of the water -- or fire

9    protection?

10                           MS. EAGAN:  Yeah.  The fire

11    protection egress as well as the 20-foot utility easement

12    along Country Club Road, which the surveyor is aware of.

13                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  All right.  So we

14    could approve this preliminary plat contingent upon

15    receiving that information?

16                           MS. EAGAN:  If that's what you choose

17    to do, yes.

18                           COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  What's the

19    problem with the 20-foot easement?

20                           MS. EAGAN:  It's just not shown.

21    It's not noted on the plat.  So they just need to note it.

22                           COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  But it

23    would -- it would be noted?

24                           MS. EAGAN:  Yes.

25                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Any other
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1    discussion?  Jay?

2                           COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  Well, I

3    guess I -- could we have Lueken come up again?  I do have a

4    couple of questions.

5                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Okay.

6                           MR. LUEKEN:  You say me, Bill?

7                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Yeah, Cameron.

8                           COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  On the

9    common ground on the detention basin, is that anticipated to

10    be the whole area shown on here to be a detention basin, or

11    is that only going to be a certain amount of this size of

12    what you're showing on this plat?

13                           MR. LUEKEN:  It'd be just a portion

14    of it.  It'd be the eastern portion of what's shown.

15                           COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  Is that

16    going to be -- just curious.  Is that going to be -- is it

17    going to be with any vegetation around it or anything or so

18    on there, or is this going to be open grass land?  Is that

19    what you're planning on?

20                           MR. LUEKEN:  Yeah.  Yeah, it will be,

21    most likely a detention basin, something like a dry pond

22    basin.

23                           COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  It

24    would be?

25                           MR. LUEKEN:  Yeah, most likely.



 PUBLIC HEARING  6/20/2017

www.midwestlitigation.com Phone: 1.800.280.3376 Fax: 314.644.1334
MIDWEST LITIGATION SERVICES

Page 30

1                           COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  And

2    then you mentioned with regards to the -- this doesn't

3    really meet with the 4:1 ratio.

4                 Just curious.  What would it -- what would it

5    take of additional acreage to basically put this concept

6    into to comply with that 4:1 ratio?

7                           MR. LUEKEN:  Sure.  Sure.

8                 So, Jay, the issue is, is that it just can't be

9    done because of the fact the zero lot line, if you can

10    imagine, starts here at the curb and goes through this

11    pillar, through this wall right here.  This would be one

12    lot.

13                 Then it could be the lot line would start here,

14    go through this wall here, and the back lot.  So it's the

15    interior.  On a triplex or a duplex, it just can't be done

16    with the minimum lot sizes of 22,000 square feet.  It won't

17    -- you just can't -- we just can't do it.  I mean, it can't

18    -- it can't be done.  So you got -- you got a component of a

19    4:1, but then you inject the component of a 22,000 square

20    foot lot, and we can't get the interior units to -- to meet

21    that.

22                           COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  But if

23    you expanded your 22,0000 square foot lots, a bigger lot

24    area, could you not at that point in time meet it?

25                           MR. LUEKEN:  That's working in the
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1    wrong way.  You got to make the lots smaller.  You have to

2    make the lots smaller to meet the 4:1.  You have to shrink

3    in the backyard.  So you got to make it shallower to meet

4    the 4:1.  Again, it goes against the spirit of what you're

5    trying to do.

6                           COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH: Okay.

7                           MS. EAGAN:  With a zero lots, though

8    you can go smaller than the minimum for that district as

9    long as you don't go over the density.

10                           MR. LUEKEN:  Right.

11                           MS. EAGAN:  Just so you are aware of

12    that.

13                           MR. LUEKEN:  Right.  But --

14                           MS. EAGAN:  I understand where you're

15    coming from.

16                           MR. LUEKEN:  Yeah.

17                           MS. EAGAN:  But what you're saying is

18    you have to meet that 22,000-square-foot, which you don't

19    have to with the zero lot line.

20                           MR. LUEKEN:  But you still got to

21    be -- for the CD district, you got to be 1 per 5,000.

22                           MS. EAGAN:  Right.  That's correct.

23                           MR. LUEKEN:  Yeah.  So 4 times 5 is

24    20,000.  So you're about there at that --

25                           MS. EAGAN:  Got you.
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1                           MR. LUEKEN:  -- 22,000.

2                           COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  Okay.

3                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Any other questions?

4                           COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  I have one.

5                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Bill?

6                           COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  Is it

7    appropriate to do this and not have any detention until the

8    last of the phase of the development?

9                           MR. LUEKEN:  Right.  Bill, so what --

10    what we're -- yeah, so to answer that, if you got a question

11    about that, we will run the numbers to show Ron.  So

12    basically what's going on there is, is that's a bean field

13    right now.  As we turn onto Crestview [ph.], it's going to

14    decrease coefficient.  So at some point when we do that,

15    it's going to be less runoff, but at some point it's going

16    to flip.  And so right now we're thinking that number is

17    where we're at.  But we can address that, Bill, with -- with

18    Ron and show it because you're asking -- you're asking can

19    it be built after Phase 2.  It's going to have to be built

20    after Phase 2.

21                 Is that what you're saying, Bill?

22                           COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  Yeah, I mean,

23    I'm much more comfortable not waiting to the Phase 3 to

24    build the detention pond.

25                           MR. LUEKEN:  Right.
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1                           COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  It looks like

2    the grades fall.  They could be even graded towards the

3    detention pond being there even if the storm sewers weren't

4    in right now.

5                           MR. LUEKEN:  Right.  Right.  So we

6    can look at that with Ron and make sure that we don't cause

7    a great runoff.

8                           COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  And just

9    because I'm in an argumentative mood, how far do you say you

10    could go before put a cul de sac or a temporary turnaround

11    in?

12                           MR. LUEKEN:  Okay.  Typically what it

13    is, is 150 feet.  So that the fire apparatus code allows you

14    to stop a street no more than 150 feet before you have to

15    have a temporary turnaround.

16                           COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  Okay.  Well,

17    this shows a 165 feet across the last lot line.

18                           MR. LUEKEN:  Does it?

19                           COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  164.5.

20                           MR. LUEKEN:  Well, I guess we only

21    have two choices.  One is to decrease the width of that lot,

22    or two, put a temporary cul de sac in.  So that's what we'll

23    have to do, or either -- or work it out to where he doesn't

24    require it I guess.

25                           MS. EAGAN:  Well, it's a part of the
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1    our code.

2                           MR. LUEKEN:  Okay.  So...

3                           MS. ZIELKE: Is that a portion of the

4    road that he actually has to develop right now though,

5    because if that lot has access on that main entrance --

6                           MS. EAGAN:  Which part of the road

7    are you looking at?

8                           MS. ZIELKE: On the north side of lot

9    -- that first lot that they're developing.  Because it's a

10    lot on a corner, and if they have access from that main

11    entrance, do they even need that other road to be developed

12    to 165 or whatever?

13                           COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  If Phase 2 has

14    to be developed second in order to have another access out?

15    Is that the reason Phase 2 will go that way instead of...

16                           MR. LUEKEN:  Um, okay.  Help me out

17    here, Scottie.  The second access is required at 30 units;

18    is that what it is?

19                           MS. EAGAN:  Correct.

20                           MR. LUEKEN:  So at 30 units, Bill,

21    the second access is required.  So -- so I guess the

22    theoretically it doesn't need to be put in until Phase 3

23    because we got -- we'd have five in first two phases and

24    four is twenty.  But to develop Phase 3, we have to put

25    that -- that emergency access road in.
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1                 Is that the way you read that, Scottie?

2                           MS. EAGAN:  Uh-huh.

3                           MR. LUEKEN:  Does that make sensation

4    to you, Bill.

5                           COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  Yeah.

6                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  All right.  Any

7    other questions.  [None]

8                 Thank you.

9                 So all the appropriate information required for

10    the preliminary plat has been received.  The two issues are

11    the fire protection the water and the 20-foot easement not

12    being shown on the provided.  Is that correct, Scottie?

13                           MS. EAGAN:  Yes.

14                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Any other

15    discussion?  [None]

16                 If not, then Chair would entertain a motion.

17                           [NO RESPONSE]

18                 Okay, the Chair would still entertain a motion.

19                           COMMISSIONER REINHOLD:  I make a

20    motion to approve the preliminary plat with the conditions

21    that we talked about.

22                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  We have a motion.

23    Do we have a second?

24                           COMMISSIONER WILLIAMS:  I'll second.

25
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1                           COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:

2    I'll make a second on that.  Go ahead.

3                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Okay.  We have a

4    motion and a second to approve preliminary plat for File

5    170098 with the two conditions as discussed.  All in favor

6    signify by saying aye.

7                           COMMISSIONER REINHOLD:  Aye.

8                           COMMISSIONER VOSS:  Aye.

9                           COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  Aye.

10                           COMMISSIONER WILLIAMS:  Aye.

11                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Aye.

12                           COMMISSIONER HAIRE:  Aye.

13                           COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  Aye.

14                           COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  Aye.

15                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Opposed?

16                           COMMISSIONER TOBBEN:  Nay.

17                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Then the motion is

18    carried.

19                 Moving on to Planning and Zoning Commission

20    Forum.  I guess two things to discuss.

21                 First, I will be absent for the July meeting

22    and most likely could co-chair Jay will be absent for the

23    July meeting.  So it will be necessary to elect a chairman

24    for that July meeting.  And I had even thought about doing

25    it tonight, but Scottie brought up the oint that we could
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1    elect somebody and they could get hit by a truck and then

2    you still wouldn't have a chairman.

3                           MS. EAGAN:  Or get sick.

4                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Or just be sick.

5    All right.

6                           COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  Or

7    might scare them away.  I don't know.

8                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  So I just wanted to

9    make everyone aware of that.  So it's also important that

10    everyone be here since there'll be at least two of us that

11    we know will not be there.

12                 I guess secondly then, if we want to discuss

13    the zero lot line and the 4:1 ratio.

14                 Scottie, I do have a question.  Cameron

15    mentioned that Union and Washington do have regulations that

16    permit this.

17                           MS. EAGAN:  When the City was here at

18    our preliminary plat meeting, and from what from I

19    understood of what Sal Moniachi said is there that their

20    zero lot lines are under a specific set.  So it's basically

21    a planned unit development when it comes through the City.

22    So they ways of working with people with it through -- well,

23    it's not a planned unit development there.  It's called

24    something else.  But he also did say though they have a

25    requirement of 50 feet is their minimum.  They don't deal
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1    with ratios over there.  They just say no lot can be less

2    than 50 feet.  It sounds like it probably doesn't.  They

3    don't enforce that when they do planned developments over

4    there, but as far as I know, they don't have anything

5    written down of this is what is required for ratios on zero

6    lot line developments.

7                 It's a we'll work with you, you work with us

8    type of deal.  Union, I have no clue what they do.

9                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Okay.  So we're

10    rather at least unique in that we do have that ratio in

11    there.

12                           MS. EAGAN: Uh-huh.

13                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Any -- being the --

14    are there any thoughts on that 4:1 how it could be changed,

15    any issues with it?

16                           MS. EAGAN:  Originally I was thinking

17    the best thing to do because the way other zero lot line

18    works is, you know, we say you can go less than the minimum

19    lot size for that district as long as you don't meet the

20    density.  So my initial thought was well, why don't we just

21    exempt they from the ratio, and then they don't have to

22    worry about it.  But then Nichole brought up the point,

23    well, in the future then you might have somebody come in

24    with a worse ratio than what we are seeing on this

25    development, which was, you know, 9:1.
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1                 So I kind of like the idea of maybe doubling it

2    for zero lot lines, but then there are still some of his

3    original proposal that wouldn't need it.  So I don't know

4    what their proposal is.  It's a tough one for me to figure

5    out what to do with.

6                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  But again, the way

7    the proposal is, is that they would actually have to -- the

8    lots are too big or two deep.

9                           MS. EAGAN: Uh-huh.

10                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Right?

11                           MS. EAGAN: Correct.

12                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  So it's not that

13    they are too small.

14                           MS. EAGAN:  Right.

15                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Well, it's something

16    we can discuss next meeting, and, Scottie, if you have come

17    up with something or have any other ideas, you all can

18    decide next month when Jay and I are gone.

19                           MS. EAGAN:  Well, from my

20    understanding, and they can correct me if I'm wrong.  They

21    might make an application to amend the Code for next month

22    to be heard.

23                           MR. LUEKEN:  Correct.  So to answer

24    your question, Bill, what we would get into is examples.

25    Basically I draw examples from Union and examples from
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1    Washington, and I go over all those scenarios with you to

2    let you see what -- what those look like, what it's about.

3                 Because I guess in just occurred to me was this

4    example.  There's a situation where the structure itself is

5    dictating what type of width it is because if it's all a

6    ranch and not a two-story, then -- so by way of the example,

7    if you can think of an example that would be shows you, if

8    the whole thing was a ranch, it would wider yet.  That

9    unit's about 112 feet --

10                           MR. KRAMME:  Hundred and ten.

11                           MR. LUEKEN:  -- 110 feet wide.  And

12    by making the center units two-story, that shrinks it in,

13    but the guy comes in and says it's all ranch, then it's

14    going to widen it, which would help with the ratio, right?

15                           MS. EAGAN:  Right.

16                           MR. LUEKEN:  But then you've got --

17    you know, you don't have the architectural look of the

18    raised section in the middle.  So there is a tradeoff with

19    that.  You know, I think that working the ratios out is

20    better than saying make it wider.

21                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Okay.  Thank you.

22                           COMMISSIONER VOSS:  I have an idea

23    just in my head.  I'm thinking why -- if the outside units

24    fall within that 4:1, we -- I think it should be fair, Bill,

25    to say that we know the other ones can't inside.  But if the
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1    outside ones do, it just seems fair what's terminology to

2    say that the building does fit the lot and what we're asking

3    for.

4                 Just in my head it just seemed that if the

5    outside ones fit, work that way --

6                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Yeah.  Obviously I

7    think we have to come up with some --

8                           COMMISSIONER VOSS:  Something in on

9    vain because --

10                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Again, Cameron has

11    got to be back next month to give us some options, but I

12    think we ought to think about what would be appropriate.

13    Obviously some flexibility seems like it would be

14    appropriate or some change.

15                           COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  Well, is it

16    all fair to discuss how wide the center units are going to

17    be?  I mean, these are between 17 and 30-foot wide I'm

18    assuming.

19                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Yeah, but that could

20    vary I guess on new projects or whatever.  So I think the

21    thing is to make it flexible enough that we don't have to do

22    this every time somebody comes in.

23                           COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  Okay.  Is

24    there -- there's a little bit off subject which you know I'm

25    always capable of.  But a little bit on the subject.
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1                 At some point in time in a development like

2    this, is the density going to get enough that there needs to

3    be road dedication made for a turn lane or anything for the

4    county roads?

5                           COMMISSIONER WILLIAMS:  I'm not aware

6    of any regulations that require that.

7                           COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  Does there

8    need to be in looking at stuff?

9                           COMMISSIONER WILLIAMS:  Sure, you can

10    put it in the subdivision would be a perfect world.  Sure,

11    if the traffic gets up high enough, it would be wonderful to

12    have a turn lane.  But that would be voluntary.  There's

13    nothing that requires it.  It's not like the State of

14    Missouri.  We don't any regulations on the book that require

15    it.

16                           COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  If we're

17    looking at stuff, do we need a regulation that requires it?

18                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  I think -- Scottie,

19    isn't it if a large subdivision is over a certain number of

20    units, you require a traffic study?

21                           MS. EAGAN: I think it's a hundred

22    peak hour trips.

23                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  A hundred peak hours

24    a traffic study, but...

25                           MS. EAGAN:  That's what I'm trying to
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1    find.

2                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Yeah, and it

3    requires that, but I don't think necessarily that it's for a

4    turn lane, yeah.  That sort of stops with doing a study.

5                           COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  Bill,

6    something that Stan said about the overall building and the

7    requirements for the dimensions and all that.

8                 There's no way you can separate any of these

9    units.  So I mean, if you look at the building versus the

10    lot itself, the physical building itself, overall it's fine

11    Like you said, it meets the requirements.

12                 There's no way you're going to build one of

13    these units self-standing.  I mean, the regulations take

14    into account a single unit, but you're not going to build

15    single units separately because it's a common building.  So

16    I don't know if there is a way we could, you know, keep the

17    ratio, because you're not going to build unit B or, you

18    know, you look at the plat.  They're not going to be built

19    separately.  The overall building meets the Code, right,

20    with the dimensions, the width of the entire building

21    itself?

22                 Because that's -- I think that's what Stan was

23    getting to.  The outside ranch meet, but the inside

24    two-stories don't.  But you're not going to build just them

25    individually on an individual lot.  They're always going to
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1    be put together.

2                           MS. EAGAN:  Well, I mean, we don't

3    have codes pertaining to specific buildings and what they

4    can do.  I've got some ideas.  So I'll talk with Cameron.

5                           COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  Right.  All

6    right.

7                           MS. EAGAN:  And we'll work something

8    out for next month.

9                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Okay.

10                 Any other comments on that?  [None]

11                 Anything else anyone would like to discus,

12    Commissioners?  [None]

13                 If not, Planning Director's Report.

14                           MS. EAGAN: I have -- it's light issue

15    with a Conditional Use Permit you guys approved in May for

16    William Buell.  He started to advertise on -- and I'll pass

17    it out -- on his website of what the event is, and some of

18    the things I don't think it meets mine what you guys wanted

19    in your Conditional Use Permit, but before we sent him

20    anything, I wanted to get your guys' opinion on it.

21                 One of the issues, which might not be a big

22    deal, but it advertises his gate hours are Friday,

23    10:00 a.m. to 1:00 a.m.; Saturday 8:00 a.m. to 1:00 a.m.;

24    and Sunday 8:00 a.m. all night, to not closing until

25    11:00 a.m. on that Monday.
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1                 I don't know what gate hours are as opposed to

2    festival.  So that might just be that campers can come in at

3    any of those times.  So that one might not be a big deal.

4                 Secondly, he advertises for the bonfire

5    sessions where he says that after the main stage shuts down

6    from 11:00 p.m. to 3:00 a.m., the featured artists from the

7    main stage will come to this bonfire session and play

8    acoustic music.

9                 So does that really meet everything ends at

10    11:00?  I don't really think it does.  And then it appears

11    they have a map of what he has on his website.  It appears

12    that they have an astronomer's club and a VIP star party and

13    sacred circles/fire camp that are on a parcel that is not a

14    part of his Conditional Use Permit.

15                 I don't know what they're doing at the

16    astronomers club or the VIP star party because that's not on

17    the website.  The only thing it says about the astronomer's

18    club is it says something about getting a ticket to come and

19    look in the giant telescope at the sky.

20                 So but the VIP star party is the one that kind

21    of gives me hesitation because what is that and what are

22    they doing.

23                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Again, that's

24    separate parcel looking in the telescope, but they're paying

25    is the issue, right?
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1                           MS. EAGAN:  Yeah, they will be

2    purchasing tickets for the astronomer's club.

3                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Okay.  So if they

4    are paying and that parcel is not within the parcel that we

5    approved, we issue a violation.

6                 Any thoughts on the 3:00 a.m.?  I think our

7    intent was activities cease at -- what was it 12:00 or 1:00?

8                           MS. EAGAN:  It was 11:00.

9                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Eleven, okay.

10                           MS. EAGAN:  Right.

11                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  That all activities

12    cease at 11:00.  So...

13                           MS. EAGAN:  Yeah.  I don't think he

14    understands that if you still have your artist that you're

15    paying to be there and play music, that's still a part of

16    your festival.  So -- and inviting everyone to come over

17    there is no different than seeing them on the mains stage.

18                           COMMISSIONER WILLIAMS:  I think he

19    needs to be sent a notice.

20                           COMMISSIONER HAIRE:  Even -- you

21    know, even what he handed out to us, it says any

22    entertainment or music will not extend past 11:00 p.m.

23                           MS. EAGAN:  Right.  And that's what

24    you guys based it on.

25                           COMMISSIONER HAIRE:  Yeah.
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1                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  I think by consensus

2    we all agree that --

3                           MS. EAGAN:  Okay.

4                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  -- he ought to get

5    some communication from you.

6                           MS. EAGAN:  Okay.  I started to write

7    one, and then I realized, well, you guys approved the CUP.

8    I should probably get your approval on it before we go ahead

9    and send him a hey, we're watching you.

10                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Yeah.  If there's no

11    dissention, we'll just say consensus approval to send the

12    communication.

13                           MS. EAGAN:  And if anyone wants to

14    look at it, it's "Darking of the Sun Festival" on-line if

15    you want to Google it.  Look at everything he's offering.

16                           COMMISSIONER HAIRE:  Darking of the

17    Sun"?

18                           MS. EAGAN:  "Darking of the Sun."

19                 Then next month I have some more regulation

20    changes for you guys.

21                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Anything else?

22    [None]

23                 If not, the Chair would entertain a motion to

24    adjourn.

25                           COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  Motion.
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1                           COMMISSIONER HAIRE:  Second.

2                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Motion and second to

3    adjourn.  All in favor signify by saying aye.

4                           COMMISSIONER REINHOLD:  Aye.

5                           COMMISSIONER VOSS:  Aye.

6                           COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  Aye.

7                           COMMISSIONER WILLIAMS:  Aye.

8                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Aye.

9                           COMMISSIONER TOBBEN:  Aye.

10                           COMMISSIONER HAIRE:  Aye.

11                           COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  Aye.

12                           COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  Aye.

13                           CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Opposed?  [None]

14                 Meeting adjourned.

15                           [Thereupon, the proceedings concluded

16                      at 7:56 p.m. ]

17                                o8o
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1                      CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER

2                 I, PATSY A. HERTWECK, Professional Court

3    Reporter and Notary Public within and for the State of

4    Missouri, before whom the foregoing proceeding was taken, do

5    hereby swear that the aforementioned was held at the time

6    and in the place previously described, and was taken down in

7    shorthand and transcribed by me, or under my direction.

8                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my

9    hand.

10                           _________________________________

11                           Patsy A. Hertweck, Court Reporter

12                           Notary Public, State of Missouri

13

14    My Commission Expires:

15    August 26, 2018
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